A REGULAR MEETING
Of The
TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT AND POWER BOARD
Will Be Held On
TUESDAY, August 13,2013
At
5:15 p.m.
In The

COMMISSION CHAMBERS
(2™ floor, Governmental Center)
400 Boardman Avenue

Traverse City Light and Power will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services,
such as signers for the hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at
the meeting, to individuals with disabilities at the meeting/hearing upon notice to Traverse City
Light and Power. Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact
the Light and Power Department by writing or calling the following.

Stephanie Tvardek
Administrative Assistant
1131 Hastings Street
Traverse City, MI 49686
(231) 932-4543

Traverse City Light and Power Posting Date: 08-09-13
1131 Hastings Street 12:00 p.m.
Traverse City, MI 49686

(231) 922-4940




Light and Power Board 2 August 13, 2013
Regular Meeting

AGENDA
Pledge of Allegiance
1. Roll Call

2. Consent Calendar

The purpose of the consent calendar is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together
to be dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any member of the Board, staff or the public
may ask that any item on the consent calendar be removed therefrom and placed elsewhere on the agenda
Jor full discussion. Such requests will be automatically respected. If an item is not removed from the
consent calendar, the action noted in parentheses on the agenda is approved by a single Board action
adopting the consent calendar.

a. Consideration of approving minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 23, 2013. (Approval
recommended) (p. 3)

b. Consideration of authorizing a Joint Pole Attachment Agreement with Cherryland
Electric Cooperative. (Approval recommended) (Arends) (p. 6)

c. Consideration of authorizing an amendment to the Termination of Service Policy.
(Approval recommended) (Myers-Beman) (p. 7)

3. Unfinished Business

None.

4. New Business

a. 2012 Renewable Energy Plan report and 2013 Biennial Plan filing. (Wheaton) (p. 19)
Public comment will be accepted on the 2013 Renewable Energy Biennial filing.

5. Appointments

None.

6. Reports and Communications

a. From Legal Counsel.
b. From Staff.
1. Low Income Pilot Program update. (Wheaton/TJ Brown) (p. 37)
2. Utility Metrics summary report. (Arends) (p. 39)
3. TCL&P news and correspondence. (General — No Official Report) (p. 41)

C. From Board.

7. Public Comment
/st




TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT AND POWER BOARD

Minutes of Regular Meeting
Held at 5:15 p.m., Commission Chambers, Governmental Center
Tuesday, July 23, 2013

Board Members -
Present: Barbara Budros, Jim Carruthers, Jan Geht, Jeff Palisin, Bob Spence,
Patrick McGuire
Absent: John Taylor
Ex Officio Member -
Present: Jered Ottenwess, City Manager
Others: Tim Arends, W. Peter Doren, ;§té§ﬁanie Tvardek, Karla Myers-Beman

The meeting was called to order at 5:15 p.m. by’ A eiirman McGuire.

Item 3 on the Agendg?béﬁﬁéifﬁijﬁnished Busmess

2013 be appr OVed

CARRIED unanlmously (Taylo bsent)

4(b). Consideration ofa contract for Streetlight Pole Painting.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that the Board authorizes the Chairman and Secretary to
enter into a three year contract with National Coatings, Inc. in the amount of $52,606; subject to
approval as to substance by the Executive Director and approval as to form by General Counsel.

The following individuals from the public address the Board:

Scott Swan, non-ratepayer




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 2 July 23, 2013

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)

5:25 p.m. Bob Spence departed the meeting.

4(c). Consideration of awarding bid for Hastings Street Facility Security Enhancements.
The following individuals addressed the Board:

Tim Arends, Executive Director
Bob Sommerville, AAI
W. Peter Doren, General Counsel

Moved by Budros, seconded by Palisin, that the Board authoriz
enter into a contract between TCL&P (Owner) and Spence B
sum total amount of $39,600 for Hastings Street Security
to substance by the Executive Director and as to form
the Executive Director to administer amendments and
of the utility.

s the Chairman and Secretary to
ers (Contractor) in the lump
ncements, subject to approval as

ral Counsel; and further authorizes
lers that are in the best interests

Brothers, a Michigan corporation. Th
2013, in the lump sum amount of $39,6(
renovation of its offices at 1131 Hasting

oring and inspection of the
ice President of Spence

Moved by Carruthers, seconded by Budros, that the Light & Power Board concurs with staff’s
recommendation to opt-out of Public Act 95 of 2013.

CARRIED unanimously. (Taylor absent)

Item 5 on the Agenda being Appointments

None.

Item 6 on the Agenda being Reports and Communications




TCL&P Regular Board Meeting Minutes 3 July 23,2013

a. From Legal Counsel.
None.
b. From Staff.

1. Ed Bailey, NMC and Sarna Salzman, SEEDS, presented the 2012 Grand Vision
Energy Network Survey results.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Tim Arends, Executive Director

2. Tim Arends spoke re: the schedule for strategic planmng Wlth Hometown
Connections on August 13, 2013.

C. From Board.

1. Jim Carruthers, Jeff Palisin, Barbara Budros‘and Pat Mchre spoke re: the National
Rural Electric Cooperative course they 1ecently attended.

Item 7 on the Agenda being Public Comment

No one from the public commented.

There being no objection, Chairman McG 1re declared the meetmg ad] ourned at 5:58 p.m.

" Tim Arends, Secretary

/st LIGHT AND POWER BOARD




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13,2013

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: Light & Power Board 7
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director @ '
Date: August 8, 2013

Subject: Joint Pole Attachment License Agreement

Due to the Fiber Optics contract between TCL&P and GTACS, the utility desired to attach fiber
to eight Cherryland Rural Electric (“Cherryland”) poles to provide fiber service to Saint
Elizabeth Ann Seton middle school. The two utilities do not currently have a joint pole
attachment agreement in place, which is appropriate for this type of accommodation. However,
there are several poles in which the two utilities have joint attachments to each other currently.

Both utilities attempted to come to an agreement in 2007; however, TCL&P terminated
negotiations with Cherryland in 2009 for reasons unknown to me. I have negotiated a “no-
fee” agreement with Cherryland for your consideration that will address current and future
pole attachments to each utilities poles. Because the agreement is 33 pages long it is not
included in your packet. A pdf copy has been e-mailed to the board in advance of this
meeting.

Staff recommends the Board approve entering into the Joint Pole Attachment License
Agreement as presented. This item is appearing on the Consent Calendar as it is deemed by
staff to be a non-controversial item. Approval of this item on the Consent Calendar means
you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the “items removed from the consent calendar” portion of
the agenda for full discussion.

[f after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would
be appropriate:

MOVED BY » SECONDED BY ,
THAT THE BOARD AUTHORIZES THE CHAIRMAN AND THE SECRETARY TO
ENTER INTO A JOINT POLE ATTACHMENT LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH
CHERRYLAND ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO
SUBSTANCE BY THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY
GENERAL COUNSEL.




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013
<1 1975

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: TCL&P Board of Directors

From: Karla Myers-Beman, Controller Wﬁ’
Date: August 6, 2013

Subject: Amended Termination Policy

At the last board meeting, the Board concurred with management on Public Act 95 of 2013, by
opting out of disconnecting customer services from November 1 through April 15. This impacted
the Utility's termination policy and the following modifications have been made:

1. In the previous termination policy, there were specific requirements relating to disconnecting
services for senior citizens and low-income households during the heating season, which were in
response to a customer death in Bay City (Amendment to Public Act 3 of 1939).  These
requirements are no longer valid since services will not be disconnected. Therefore, the heating
season requirements were removed and replaced with disconnections of service will not occur from
November 1 through April 15.

2. The second change was to remove reminder notices being sent within 10 days after the due date.
This change was recommended by Hometown Connections efficiency study, because the following
month's billing already provides this notice. In making this change, Light and Power will save at the
minimum approximately $13,500 annually in postage, paper and printing costs along with related
labor costs.

The amended Termination Policy is enclosed for your review. Staff recommends approval of
the amended Termination Policy as presented. Approval of this item on the Consent
Calendar means you agree with staff’s recommendation.

If any member of the Board or the public wishes to discuss this matter, other than clarifying
questions, it should be placed on the agenda as an item under “items removed from the
consent calendar”.

If after Board discussion you agree with staff’s recommendation the following motion would
be appropriate:




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13,2013

MOVED BY , SECONDED BY

THAT THE LIGHT AND POWER BOARD ADOPTS THE TERMINATION OF ELECTRIC

SERVICE POLICY AS PRESENTED TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY AND

RESCINDS ANY INCONSISTENT POLICY.




Light and Power Department
City of Traverse City, MI
Adopted: January 9, 1996
Amended: December 22, 2009
Amended:

TERMINATION OF ELECTRIC SERVICE POLICY

This policy provides for the processes and procedures in handling non-payment of customer
utility bills.
continue offering customers the lowest possible rates. This policy is also intended to ensure the
safety of customers, as it relates to termination of services, including protections for senior
citizens, lew-ineome, and critical care customers.

It is intended to minimize delinquencies and bad debt write-offs in an effort to

Upon adoption of this policy, all previously adopted policies, practices, writings, and procedures
regarding termination of electric services for non-payment of utility bills are repealed.

1.

Amount to be collected: - The total amount of an unpaid bill on a customer account after

the billing due date.

Termination of service procedure: - Customers who are more than 30 days past due are

subject to termination of services. Each customer type (industrial, commercial, and
residential) is subject to the procedures below. There are additional procedures regarding
residential customer terminations that do not apply to industrial and commercial
customers. During the 30-day period following the billing due date the utility may
proceed as follows:

B-A. Utility delinquency/disconnect notice shall be sent by first-class mail if

o

payment is not received w1th1n4eﬂ—&9)-day5ﬂﬁe1—%he+eméet—neﬂeﬁs—seﬂt orty

(40) days of the original bill date. (The subsequent billing invoice approximately
30 days later shall serve as the initial reminder for the amount due.) The purpose
of this notice is to give notice to the customer that the utility may terminate their
services within ten (10) days of the notice date if the past-due balance is not paid
in its entirety. Additionally, this notice may give notice that the utility may file
suit in 86th District Court if the past-due balance is not paid in its entirety.
Customer shall be responsible for court filing fees and service fees, as allowed by
law; these charges may be charged-up on a customer’s account.

B. Final delinquency notice shall be placed on the door or deliver where the service

is provided if payment is not received by the date printed on the utility
delinquency/disconnect notice. The final delinquency notice shall allow the
customer at least one (1) day to pay the delinquent amount. A fee may be

Page 1 0of 10




assessed to a customer account that causes the utility to place a final delinquency
notice on the service address. The fee shall be in accordance with the “Schedule
of Miscellaneous Charges” as approved by the Light & Power Board.

& D b Erma
b-C. Termination of electric service may be completed on or after the date numbe

printed on the final delinquency notice if all of the steps described above have
failed to cause receipt of the delinquency.

ED. Non-sufficient funds (NSF) checks shall also be cause for termination of
electric service. If the NSF check was written to avoid termination of services for
non-payment, the service shall be disconnected immediately upon notice of non-
sufficient funds. A fee shall be assessed for each NSF check in accordance with
the “Schedule of Miscellancous Charges” as approved by the Light & Power
Board.

Payment arrangements may be negotiated on a case-by-case basis with the utility. The
customer may be required to sign an arrangement agreement that indicates a plan to pay
current and future billings, as well as delinquent portions of the bill, such that the balance
owed on the account declines rather than increases. A payment arrangement for the
delinquent portion shall not exceed 90 days without approval by a utility supervisor.

Reconnection of utility service: Any customer that has had service disconnected for
non-payment shall pay their delinquent balance plus a reconnect fee, in advance, to be
eligible for service reinstatement. The fee shall be in accordance with the “Schedule of
Miscellaneous Charges” as approved by the Light and Power Board. In addition, a
security deposit, letter of credit, or other collateral may be required prior to service
reinstatement. The amount and conditions shall be dependent on the specific
circumstances of each individual case. A customer may be required to pay their account
balance, including current charges and reconnect fees, in its entirety before service is
reinstated.

Other remedies: Termination of service for non-payment will not foreclose the utility
from other remedies for collection of amounts owing on the customer account. The
utility may pursue other remedies without availing itself of the termination of service
remedy.

Public Act 154 compliance: Traverse City Light & Power shall promptly notify the
Michigan Public Service Commission if one of its customers suffers serious injury or
death resulting from shutoff of electric service as authorized by this policy.

Page 2 of 10

0




RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMER GENERAL SHUTOFF RULES

Traverse City Light & Power shall not use an electric service limiter. [This Rule may be
re-evaluated after the Michigan Public Service Commission issues a temporary order that
establishes uniform standards for the use of electric service limiters.]

Traverse City Light & Power shall refund any late fees, fines, or payments related to a
shutoff or resumption of service if those late fees, fines, or payments were improperly
assessed because of the failure to provide notice as required by these Rules.

Notwithstanding other requirements of this Rule, service may be shut off temporarily for
reasons of health or safety or in a state or national emergency. When service is shut off
for reasons or health or safety, a reasonable attempt shall be made to leave a notice at the
premises if feasible.

Traverse City Light & Power may shut off or terminate service to a residential customer
for any of the following reasons:

A. The customer has not paid a delinquent account that accrued within the last six (6)
years.

B. The customer has failed to provide a deposit or guarantee as required.

C. The customer has engaged in unauthorized use of the utility's service.

D. The customer has failed to comply with the terms and conditions of a payment
plan.

E. The customer has refused to arrange access at reasonable times for the purpose of

inspection, meter reading, maintenance, or replacement of equipment that is
installed upon the premises or for the removal of a meter.

F. The customer misrepresented his or her identity for the purpose of obtaining
service or put service in another person's name without permission of the other
person.

G. The customer has violated any rules of Traverse City Light & Power so as to
adversely affect the safety of the customer or other persons or the integrity of the

system.

H. A person living in the customer's residence meets both of the following:

Page 3 of 10

—
—




(1) Has a delinquent account for service with Traverse City Light & Power ia-

the-past-three-(3)-years-that remains unpaid.

(i)  The customer lived in the person's residence when all or part of the debt was
incurred. Traverse City Light & Power may transfer a prorated amount of
the debt to the customer's account, based upon the length of time that the
customer resided at the person's residence. This subdivision does not apply
if the customer was a minor while living in the person's residence.

L The customer has not paid for service at a premises occupied by another person,
and it is not feasible to provide service to the occupant as a customer without a
major revision, as determined by the utility, of existing distribution facilities.

Subject to applicable third-party consent, a customer will be permitted to designate a
third party to receive bill notifications, including shutoff notices, on the customer's
behalf. Such notices may be provided to both the designated third party and the
customer.

A. Traverse City Light & Power shall supply information regarding the following to
customers at least two (2) times a year:

(1) The energy assistance telephone line number at the Michigan Department
of Human Services or an operable 2-1-1 system telephone number.

(i)  Medical emergency protections.
(iii)  Military shutoff protections.
(v) Senior citizen protections provided in these Rules.

B. The information required under Subsection (A) may be supplied in or on a
customer's bill, in a bill insert, in a newsletter issued to customers, a public forum,
newspaper announcement, an electronic communication, or in any other manner

approved by the governing body of the utility.

Traverse City Light & Power shall, at least once per year, attempt to identify senior
citizen customers by at least one (1) of the following methods:

A. Conducting customer interviews.
B. Obtaining information from a consumer reporting agency or consumer reporting
service.

Page 4 of 10




10.

11.

12.

F.

G.

A personal or automated telephone call where direct contact is made with a
member of the customer's household or a message is recorded on an answering
machine or voice mail.

First-class mail.

A personal visit to the customer.

A written notice left at or on the customer's door.

On a bill or in a bill insert.

Service shall not be shut off unless a notice is sent to the customer by first-class mail or is
personally served not less than ten (10) days before the date of the proposed shutoff. A
record of the date the notice was sent shall be maintained.

A notice of shutoff shall contain all of the following information:

A.

D.

The name and address of the customer, and the address at which service is
provided, if different.

A clear and concise statement of the reason for the proposed shutoff of service.

The date on or after which service may be shut off unless the customer takes
appropriate action.

The telephone number and address where the customer may make inquiry or file a
complaint.

For an involuntary shutoff, at least one attempt, in addition to the notice provided in
Section 8, shall be made one or more days before the shutoff of the service to contact the
customer by one (1) or more of the following methods:

A.

C.

D.

A personal or automated telephone call where direct contact is made with a
member of the customer's household or a message is recorded on an answering
machine or voice mail.

First-class mail.

A personal visit to the customer.

A written notice left at or on the customer's door.

All attempts to contact the customer under Section 10 shall be documented.

Service may be shut off to a customer on the date specified in the notice of the shutoff or

Page 5 of 10




13.

14.

15.

16.

within ten (10) days following that date. If service is not shut off and a subsequent notice
is sent, then service shall not be shut off before the date specified in the subsequent
notice. Shutoff shall occur only between the hours of 8 a.m. and 3 p.m.

Service shall not be shut off on a day, or a day immediately preceding a day, when
services cannot be restored.

Not later than two hours before the close of the utility's business on the day service is
shut off, a notice shall be left at the customer's residence stating that service has been shut
off and providing the address and telephone number where the customer may arrange to
have service restored. Alternatively, a contact by telephone may be made with an adult
who identifies himself or herself as a person living at the residence providing the same
information within the same timeframe.

No later than three (3) business days after shutting off service to a known senior citizen
customer, Traverse City Light & Power shall make at least two attempts to contact that
customer to advise the customer of the actions that the customer must take to have his or
her service restored.

A. The following notification methods may be used to contact the customer:
(1) A personal or automated telephone call where direct contact is made with
a member of the customer's household or a message is recorded on an
answering machine or voice mail.
(i)  First-class mail.
(iii) A personal visit to the customer.
(iv) A written notice left at or on the customer's door.

(v) Any other method approved by the governing body of the utility.

B. A communication described in Subsection (A)(iii) or (iv) made on the day of
disconnection meets the requirements of this Rule.

C. A message left on an answering machine or voice mail or a written notice left at
or on a customer's door must include a toll free or local telephone number
indicating that it may be used to contact a representative of Traverse City Light &
Power regarding restoration of service.

D. The notice requirement of this section may be met with regard to a senior citizen
customer by, within three (3) business days of shutting off service, making a
documented referral of that customer to a social service or government agency.

Reasonable efforts shall be made to restore service on the day the customer requests

Page 6 of 10

m—r




restoration. Except for reasons beyond the control of Traverse City Light & Power, the
service shall be restored not later than the first working day after the customer's request.

| 17. A charge may be assessed for restoring service.

COOLING SEASON SHUTOFFS

18.  Each morning, the temperature forecast in the Traverse City Record Eagle will be
reviewed. If the temperature forecast for the current day OR the following day is 95
degrees or greater, eligible senior citizen customers will not be disconnected on the
current day. For Fridays, customers will not be disconnected if the forecast is for 95
degrees or greater for Friday, Saturday or Sunday.

HEATING SEASON SHUTOFFS

19. Traverse City Light & Power shall not shut-effdisconnect -service to a customer during
the heating season for nonpayment of a delinquent account from November 1 through
April 15. (As required by Public Act 95 of 2013 opt out election made by the TCL&P.) #

Page 7 of 10

—



SHUTOFF OF CRITICAL CARE CUSTOMERS

| 2120. Shutoff shall be postponed for not more than 21 days if the customer or a member of the
customer's household is a critical care customer or has a certified medical emergency.
The customer's certification shall identify the medical condition, any medical or life-
supporting equipment being used, and the specific time period during which the shutoff
of service will aggravate the medical emergency. Shutoff may be extended for further
periods of not more than 21 days, not to exceed a total postponement of shutoff of service
of 63 days, only if the customer provides additional certification that the customer or a
member of the customer's household remains a critical care customer or has a certified
medical emergency. If shutoff of service has occurred without any postponement being
obtained, the service shall be restored for not more than 21 days, and shall continue for
further periods of not more than 21 days, not to exceed a total of 63 days in any 12-month
period per household member. Annually, shutoff extensions totaling more than 126 days
per household will not be given.

| 2221. As used in these Rules:

A. "Critical care customer" means a customer who requires, or has a household
member who requires, home medical equipment or a life support system, and who
has provided appropriate documentation from a physician or medical facility to
Traverse City Light & Power identifying the medical equipment or life-support
system and certifying that an interruption of service would be immediately life
threatening.

B. "Electric service limiter” means an electronic device used in conjunction with an

Page 8 of 10




electric meter that automatically interrupts all electric service to a customer
without intervening direction from Traverse City Light & Power when a utility-
imposed peak usage limit is exceeded.

D. "Eligible senior citizen customer" means a utility customer who is 62 years of age
or older and who advises the utility of his or her eligibility.

" 3 "
o

F. "Medical Emergency" means an existing medical condition of the customer or a
member of the customer's household, as defined and certified by a physician or
public health official on official stationery or company-provided form, that will be
aggravated by the lack of utility service.

G. "Senior citizen customer" means a customer of Traverse City Light & Power who
is 62 years of age or older.

| 2322. These Rules shall be part of the terms and conditions of the contract for service between
Traverse City Light & Power and the customer.

| 2423. These Rules are subject to change if there is a change in applicable statutes and may be
supplemented by Traverse City Light & Power from time-to-time.

| Eddonard-E—Reee

| Edward E-RiceTim Arends
Executive Director and Secretary
Traverse City Light and Power Board

Page 9 of 10




SCHEDULE OF MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

Service Reconnect $ 20.00
After Hours Service Reconnect $ 50.00
Line Crew Service Reconnect ‘ $ 150.00
After Hours Line Crew Service Reconnect $200.00
NSF Check Fee $ 15.00
Final Delinquency Notice (Door Tag) $ 5.00

**Court Fees, as allowed by law, shall be charged up on customer accounts.

Page 10 of 10




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013

Q‘ST ]9]?

TRAVERSE CITY
LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: TCL&P Board of Directors
From: Jessica Wheaton, Marketing & Community Relations Coordinator
Date: July 31, 2013

Subject: 2012 Renewable Energy Annual Report and 2013 Biennial Plan Filing

2012 Renewable Energy Annual Report

In addition to helping Michigan residents become more energy efficient, Public Act 295
(PA 295) also requires electric utilities to increase the percentage of renewable energy
in its generation portfolio. Attached is the Renewable Energy Annual Report (see
packet page 21) that was filed on TCL&P’s behalf by MPPA with the MPSC on June 30,
2013.

In summary, TCL&P’s successes to date in meeting the state-mandated renewable
energy goal include:

o A long-term agreement to buy electricity that is generated from the Heritage
Stoney Corners wind farm. Beginning in August 2010, the energy produced from
this agreement was equivalent to powering approximately 4,171 Traverse City
area homes.

s A long-term agreement to buy electricity that is generated from the Granger
landfill gas facility. In 2012, the energy produced from this agreement was
equivalent to powering approximately 497 Traverse City area homes.

o Owning and operating the country’s largest utility grade wind turbine when it was
installed in 1996. At 600 kilowatts, it is small in comparison to today’s larger
units. Even though the unit was down 5 months in 2012 for repairs, it still
produced enough energy to power 52 Traverse City area homes.

For the 2012 reporting period, TCL&P generated or acquired 31,119,324 kilowatt hours
of renewable energy. During this timeframe, TCL&P’s renewable energy was 8.54% of
its total retail electric sales. State law requires utilities to have 10% renewable energy
by 2015 and TCL&P exceeded this mandate in 2012 with a peak month of 12% for the
year. TCL&P anticipates that it will achieve as much as 16% by 2015 with the increase
in landfill gas energy production.

2013 Renewable Energy Biennial Filing

In 2013, TCL&P is required to file a 2-year update to its Renewable Energy Plan filing.
Attached is the 2013 Renewable Energy Biennial Plan (see packet page 28) that was filed
on TCL&P’s behalf by MPPA with the MPSC on July 1, 2013.

This filing provides the MPSC with updated renewable energy numbers and forecasts for
the utility. Based on the Renewable Energy Plan, TCL&P will have the required Renewable
Energy Credits for the period of 2013-2029, thereby complying with PA 295.

19




FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013

TCL&P is required to offer an opportunity for customers to comment on the 2013
Renewable Energy Biennial Plan and file those comments with the MPSC by August 30,
2013. TCL&P is accepting public comment beginning August 12 through August 26,
including an opportunity to provide comment on the 2013 Renewable Energy Biennial Plan
at the August 13 TCL&P Board meeting. TCL&P is also accepting public comment on the
Biennial Plan through the TCL&P website, www.iclp.org, in writing, or in person at TCL&P’s
office located at 1131 Hastings Street.

The 2013 Renewable Energy Biennial Plan can be viewed online at TCL&P’s website by
clicking on the ‘Energy Smart’ button at the bottom of the homepage, scrolling down to the
‘Reports’ section, and clicking on the ‘2013 Renewable Energy Biennial Filing’ link. A hard
copy can also be viewed in person at TCL&P'’s office located at 1131 Hastings Street,
Traverse City.

20



Renewable Energy Annual Report
Revised April 2013

Electric Provider: Traverse City Light & Power
Reporting Period: Calendar Year 2012

e Section 51(1) of 2008 PA 295 requires the filing of this document with the Michigan Public
Service Commission.

e Many of the requested figures are available from MIRECS reports; names of which are noted
within this template. If your figures agree with those within MIRECS, you may submit the
MIRECS report as an attachment to this annual report. If your figures differ from those within
MIRECS, please explain any discrepancies. Staff from the MPSC and MIRECS Administrator, APX,
Inc., are available to help reconcile.

Section 51(1).

Within this section, list and describe actions taken by the electric provider to comply with the renewable
energy standards.

a. Flllngs to the Commlssmn (case numbers)

b Summary of actlons taken dunng reportmg perlod |

1}jPage

21




Section 51(2)(a).

Within this section, list the type of and number of energy credits (either renewable energy credits or
incentive renewable energy credits) obtained and the MWh of electricity generated or otherwise
acquired during the reporting period. Distinguish between different vintages (years) obtained.

Credits From

PA 295)

Contracted (energy and
credits)

_ Total Credlts acqunred

Built, Co. Owned (post

Contracted (creditsony) |

Renewable Energy
Credits

2010 — 830
2011-4,623
2012 22,819

Incentive Credits

2011-240

2012-2,282

MWh Electricity
Generated/Acquired

2010 — 830
2011 - 4,623

2012 - 22 819

ThIS data may be found in MIRECS reports trtled My Generatlon Report and My Credlt Transfers

Explaln any dlfferences between total credlts acqurred and the sum ofthe first four rows above.

Within this section, list the type of and number of energy credits (either renewable energy credits or
incentive renewable energy credits) sold, traded or otherwise transferred during the reporting period.

Credit no longer owned

Expired (not in
compliance sub-

account)

Renewable Energy

Credits

51

Incentive Credits

1Report separate comphance sub- accounts on drfferent rows.

List sub-account name
(indicate compliance
year)

DefaultRET

2jPage

22




This data may be found in MIRECS reports titled: My Sub-Accounts (filtered by Michigan eligibility and its
end date) and My Credit Transfers.

Within this section, report the total inventory of energy credits at the end of the reporting period.
Inventory shall be reported by vintage year and not include credits within the current reporting year
compliance sub-account.

Renewable Energy Credits Incentive Credits Advanced Cleaner Energy
Credits

Thrs data may be found in the MIRECS report tltled My Credlt Breakdown

Section 51(2)(b).
Within this section, list the number of advanced cleaner energy credits obtained and the MWh of
advanced cleaner energy generated or otherwise acquired during this reporting period.

Credits From Advanced Cleaner Energy Credits MWh Electricity

Generated/Acquired

 Existing, Co. Owned,prePA295 |
Built, Co. Owned (post PA 295)
_ Contracted (creditsonly)
Contracted {energy and credlts)
| TotalCreditsacquired . | . = | -
Thrs data may be found in MIRECS reports t|tIed My Generatlon Report and My Credlt Transfers

Did the percentage limits in Section 27(7) affect development of advanced cleaner energy by the electric
provider? How so?
. ic provider does not receive ACEC credits

3|Page

23




Section 51(2)(c).

Within this section, list each renewable energy system (RES) and advanced cleaner energy system (ACES)
owned, operated or controlled by the electric provider. List the capacity of each system, the amount of
electricity generated by each system and the percentage of electricity which was generated from
renewable energy (RE) or advanced cleaner energy (ACE).

System Name:

System Type

(RES or ACES)

_ TraverseWind |

Nameplate
Capacity (MW)

Electricity
Generated (MWh)

1System name should agree with the project name listed within MIRECS.

This data may be found in the Project Management module within MIRECS.

% of Electricity
generated by
RE/ACE

Within this section, list the renewable energy system (RES) and advanced cleaner energy systems {ACES)
the electric provider is purchasing energy credits from. These include purchase power agreements.

However, unbundled (credit only) purchases do not need to be listed here. Projects (generators) serving
multijurisdictional electric providers should be listed here.

System Name

Project - Granger
Landfill Gas

ge Sto

Project - NANR

System Type
(RES or ACES)

RES

Electricity
Purchased (MWh)

1Distinguish between different types of credits.
Allocation Factor and Method: For use if 100% of system output is not purchased. For instance, a system

selling to multiple parties: list how the energy and credits are allocated — if by percentage, list the
percentage as well.

Energy Credits
Purchased:

236 REC
43 IREC

Allocation Factor

and Method
Percent:

Percentage —

4|Page

24




Allocation Factor and Method: If used by multijurisdictional electric providers please include which
percentage of energy and credits are to be distributed to Michigan (list allocation method as well, for
example: system load).

Section 51(2)(d).

Within this section, list whether, during the reporting period, the electric provider entered into a
contract for, began construction on, continued construction of, acquired, or placed into operation a
renewable energy (RE) system or advanced cleaner energy (ACE) system.

System Name1 Resource Nameplate Construction Commercial Owned by
(technology, | Capacity (MW) | start date or | operation date electric
RE/ACE) acquisition provider?

date

1System name should agree with the project name listed within MIRECS.
Dates may be forecast.

Section 51(2)(e).

Within this section, list the total expenditures incurred during the reporting period to comply with the
renewable energy standards. Also, electric providers with an approved or planned renewable energy
surcharge (as per Section 45), list the incremental cost of compliance (ICC) incurred during the reporting
period.

Total Transfer Cost for 2012 Total ICC for 2012
newable energy and capacity revenue recovered from PSCR clause.

Transfer Cost: The component of re

| Capital Expenditures for 2012

5|Page

25




Capital Expenditure: An investment in a renewable energy capital asset.

List the forecasted total expenditures for the remaining plan period. Also, electric providers with an
approved or planned renewable energy surcharge (as per Section 45), list the forecasted incremental
cost of compliance (ICC) for the remaining plan period.

Forecast of total remaining expenditures for the | Forecast of the ICC for the remaining plan period
residual plan period of 2013-2029 (2013-2029)

Total Expenditures: ICC + Transfer Cost

Section 51(2)(f).
Within this section, list the method and the retail sales in MWh for the reporting period.

L|st the Method elther average of 2009-2011 retail sales or the 2011 weather normahzed retall sales
... _ Average of 2009-2011 retail sales -

Themethod chosen should be consnstent with the method approved in the |n|t|al plan case from 2009
All sales are retail (net of wholesale).

(A) List the sales in MWh based on the method selected above. Please show the calculation of this figure
(mcludlng Ilstmg the sales of each year if the three year average method is used)
- . (314 881 + 317 389 + 322 270)/3 318 180 -

(B) Inventory: List the number of non-expired energy credits available after submittal of the 2012
MIRECS compliance report. These energy credits may have 2010, 2011 and 2012 vintages. Do not
include credits within the 2012 compliance sub-account. This number may differ from the inventory
figure given in Section 51(2)(a) above. List green pricing program, energy optimization and advanced
cIeaner energy credlts separately and onIy if they are to be used for RPS compllance in a future year.

(C) 2012 Renewable Energy: List the number of energy credits with a 2012 vintage. Include 2012 vintage
energy credits used for compliance in 2012 as well as those 2012 vintage energy credits not yet used for
compliance. Again, take into account green pricing program credits and energy optimization or
advanced cleaner energy credit substitutions with a 2012 vintage.

Llst credlts from energy generated durmg 2012

Calculate the estimated renewable energy percentage. Figure above (C) divided by sales in MWh above
(A).
6|Page

26




Estlmated Renewable Energy Percentage based on 2012 vmtage energy credlts (C dwrded by A)

(D) Compliance: List the energy credits used for compliance for the 2012 compliance year. This number
should agree with the compliance requirement listed in the 2012 compliance subaccount in MIRECS.
Take into account any energy optimization or advanced cleaner energy credit substitutions and limits on

their use.

Calculate the renewable energy percentage. Figure above divided by sales in MWh above (D divided by
A).

Does the “energy credits used for compliance in this reporting year” figure above include any credits
representing energy generated within 120 days after the start of the next calendar year? Yes/No.

If yes, how many credits from 2013 generation are included?

To be used for 2013 Compliance Year

Similar to (A) from Section 51(2)(f) above.

List the sales in MWh based upon the same method selected above. Sales should either be the average
of 2010-2012 retail sales or the 2012 weather normalized retail sales. Please show the calculation of this
flgure (mcludmg Ilstmg the sales of each year if the three year average method is used)

. (317,389+322,270 +325,493)/3 =321,717 '

7|Page

27




TRAVERSE CITY LIGHT & POWER

RENEWABLE ENERGY PLAN
U-16635

JUNE, 2013

Based on this Renewable Energy Plan (REP) Traverse City Light & Power
(City) will have the required Renewable Energy Credits (RECs) for the REP
time period of 2013-2029 thereby complying with PA 295.

The primary source of RECs is participation in the Michigan Public Power
Agency (MPPA) Granger and North American Natural Resources (NANR)
Projects. These projects will utilize landfill gas for electric power generation
from a variety of locations in Michigan and possibly in neighboring states.

The City will have excess RECs to sell during various time periods through
out the REP planning period. Selling of RECs represents a source of income
to the City which will reduce overall power supply costs. The cost per REC
will be determined to a large extent by market forces in the Michigan REC
market. This REP assumes the sale of some of the excess RECs keeping the
balance in reserve. .

The City will comply with Section 45 of PA 295 which refers to methods of
notification to customers charges, if any, for costs associated with its REP.

The City had a pre-existing policy in place to develop and include renewable
energy project costs with their power supply cost recovery, therefore, there are
no incremental costs of compliance. If RECs were to be purchased at some
point in the future then there would be an incremental cost of RECs for the
additional RECs purchased and would be included in a surcharge accordingly.

28




UIONVUO

| sbed

8T'8lL BEY $|e5211 $ | €9'601 A BESD $186°H04 $ | 05'66 $ |28 $ | 06'56 $ | zove $ | 106 $ HMIN T $ 1S00 TV.LOL ¥IONVHD| ZE
5
859'0¥L’L  $ | 488'THL'L | v69's80t $[€IT'6S0't  $|sie'e0’t  §|€41'900'L  § | £85'es $ | 265’656 $ | 666'156 $ | ovs'ose $ [ eveises $ | 9L9'c89 $ $ 1500 TVLOL ¥IONVO] OF |
- | - S - $| - $ - HEE . - § - $ | 1185 $ | 69501 $ | €892l 5| - $ $ L1SOD NNODYILNI ¥IONVHD| 62
859'0¥L'L 188'THL 769'G80'L €12'650' 8.€'€E0'L £21'800'% £85'£86 265656 181'9€6 ] 659'V2L 9/9'¢89 $ 1S00 AOHINT ¥IONYO| 8Z
px4

- $1 - sl - $| - $| - $| - $| - $] - FREED $ | 695'01 $|£89°C1 $| - $ [voL $ NdHUM | 92
- $| - $| - $| - $| - $| - $| - $| - $ | e0z'sL BERD $| 61T §] - $ $ S1SO2 NOILOANNODHIINI| 62
e

859'0v1'L  $|.e8ThL’L 5| #69'580'h  $[e€iT’6s0't  $|s8ie'ee0’t  $|€41'800')  § | £85'ee6 $ | 265'656 $ | /81’986 $ | 121008 $ | 659'v2L $ | 99'c89 $ Ok $ L4 HUm FeZ
182'960°L $ | se0'040'L $ | 9€6'EV0'L $ | viv'910'L $ | 2€9'€66 $ | 26€'696 $ | £62'6¥6 $ | 589'726 $ | 084'006 $ | L58'208 $ | 892'969 $ | 09g'Ls9 $ $ 1SOD WINIWIHONI WLOL| 22
€LE110 $ | 980110 $ | 528010 $ | 195040 $ | €0g01'0 $ | 250010 $ | z0ss00 $ | 895600 $ | vees00 $ [ 201600 $ | 588800 $ | 899800 $ EENE 1SOJ LINM TYINIWIHONI LT
10000°0 $ | 100000 $ | L0000°0 $ | 100000 $ | 100000 $ | 100000 $ | 100000 $ | 100000 $ { 100000 $ | 100000 $ | to000'0 $ | 100000 $ U 1§ S3O¥YHO SAM| 0Z
1£200°0 $ | 1ez000 $ | szzooo $ [ 022000 $ | stz000 $ | 01zo0'0 $ | sozoo'e $ | oozooo $ ] 561000 $ | 0s100°0 $ | s8100'0 $ | 181000 $ [ NIWaY |61
- $| - $ - $i - $ - $ - s - $ - $| - $ - $| - $| - $ Ul 1§ W20 |8}
SELLLD $ | €9804°0 $ | 865040 $ | ovealo $ | Leoot'o $ | 1786070 $ | 1096070 $ | 298600 $ | 6£160°0 $ | 9168070 $ | 86980°0 $ | 98¥80°0 $ Ut 1§ 1500 LINN ¥3ONvYD| /1
9l

Sl

ves'LL y25'LL yes'i yesLL 2511 y2s'LL ¥25'LL yes'11L ¥2s'LL Lag'oL 2UE'6 €90'6 SO iol |yl
gl

088'L oeg'} 088’1 088'L 088’1 088'L 088'L 088’} 088’ ogL't 625'1 6LY'L $03Y SO INIONIHOIW BMVId-NO |21
¥99'6 #79'6 ¥¥9'6 ¥79'6 ¥v9'6 ¥¥9'6 799'6 +79'6 79’6 118'8 €L ¥85'L $23y NOILvyaNZD 3sve | L1
] S110380 AOY3INT I1avmanay| ol

6

[ 05¢'L 0S¢ 0S€'L [ oS’} 05e’t 05¢’ | 0S¢t oze’L 680'L 6560 M ALIOvavo| g
¥79's Pp9'6 ¥¥9'6 ¥79'6 ¥99'6 9’6 ¥v9'6 ¥¥9'6 79’6 1/8'8 £p8'L ¥85'L HMIW NOILV¥3INI9O 13N} /
9

g

$20Z €202 2207 120¢ 0z0Z 6107 810z 1102 9102 S10Z ¥10Z €107 ¥
d3ONVE9| €

4

ALID ISHIAVYL| L

1 S | 0 d 0 N W 1 A r | 2 g v ]

O-ALIDL~dIUVIVNIL 102D 9SI9NBI1NG0-E1L0Z-SdMVIN

29



HIONVHO

z abed

29EEL $ | 9s'0et $| &2 $| v $|vziz $ HMN/ § 1SOD W1OL ¥IONVHO| Z¢
53

¥55'062' ) $19/0'662'L  $|99e'seT’t  $|SOv'86LL  §|GlM'69t’L  § $ 1509 V10, ¥3ONvY9] 0E
- $| - § - $| - HEE $ $ 1S00 NNOOHILNI HIONVHO| 62
[ves'oszt 9.0'652'L 99¢'92Z't Sov'gsl’l SLL'69L'L $ 1S00 ASHING ¥2ONVN9| 82 |
Z

- $i - $| - $| - §| - §[y0'L $ LidHUm {92
- $| - $| - $| - 3| - $ $ SLS0D NOLLOINNODYALINY G2
144

¥$5'062'L §|9.0'667')  $|9vg’ezz’y  $[sov'es’L  §|SiMESlt  § vO'L $ idHUM [ €2
£16'072') $losg0rz’t  $[etelt sjeielzsrr sLoevely  § E 1S00 WLNIWINONI Tv10L]| 22
898210 $ | ¥ss21°0 $ | thzzvo $[6¥6L10 $[ 259110 $ 034 /8 1509 LINN TYINIWIHONI} 1.2
200000 $ | 10000°0 $ | 100000 $ | 10000°0 $ | 100000 $ UM /$ SA9YYHI SAM| 02
89200°0 $ | z9zoo'0 $ | sszoa'0 $ | stz00°0 $ | eve000 $ U 1§ Ninay |61
- $ - $| - $] - $] - $ YA /§ weo0 {8l
865210 $ | oszzL'0 s | 166110 DREEIN s[ewie $ i /5 1509 LINQ ¥IONVHD| /1
o1

i Sl
¥25'11 +25 L1 ¥Z5'11 ¥Zs'LL ¥25'11 $034 IWYIOL [ ¥l
€

088’ 088't oge'l 088'L 088'L SO SO3Y INJONTHOIW ¥ ¥V3d-NO |21
¥¥9'6 ¥¥9'6 ¥¥9'6 #79'6 ¥¥9'6 EREN NOlLvdaNao 3sve | L}
SLIA340 ADYINS T1§YMANN] 0L

— 6
05€°) 0se'L 0s€'L 0SE°L 05¢'t MN ALIOYdYO| 8
¥¥9'6 ¥79'6 ¥99'6 79’6 ¥¥9'6 HMN NOILVYINZO JAN{ /
9

S

6202 8202 120T 9207 S202 [
¥IONVHO] €

Z

ALID ISUIAVYL]

A X M A n o] a v |

J-ALIDL-dFHVTYNIA €L02VAHD 9519ABI1\S0-E1L0T-SdMVIN

30



TU4T¥IHLIO | abed

[e6'60t $ [ 9e7L0) LD s [ vezol s [ 26'66 3856 $ | €€'56 IR s[2L18 $ | L¥'06 D 3 HMN / $ 1800 TvLOL TIIHGNYT ¥3HL0| 2¢
|3
$07'595 $ | zsa'zss s | oz8'8es $ | 00z'9zs $ | 86L°ELS $ | sz.'108 ¢ | 861°06Y 3§ | 9u6'6Ly $ | 0e9'LLy § [ ovo'Lve ¢ | 00Z'09} $ S 1SOD V.LOL TUHANYT ¥3HLO] 0
B | - HEE | - s - | - s|” - s HEE HEE $ | 9isee $ $ 1500 NNOOYILNI 11I4ANY1 ¥3HLO| 62
$OV'595 250'255 0.8'9€S 002'92§ 86L'€1S $ZL'108 861'06¥ 9/6'6LY 0£9'LLY 0¥9'Lye $29'LE} $ 1500 ADH3N3 TISANY 1 ¥3H10| 87
LT
- s - ] - s| - s - s - s - s| - s| - s - s | 91522 $ y0'L $ LudHUm |92
- s| - s| - s| - $| - s| - R $] - s - | - § | LoL'1z $ e $ $1509 NOILOINNODHILNI| 67
144
y0¥'59S $ | 250255 $ | oL6'es $ | ooz'ozs s [ 66L'5L5 $ | szL'108 $ | s61'06Y $ | o6'6ly § | og9'LLy § | ove'ive $ | yeo'Lel $ Y01 $ LidHUMm [ €2
859'chS $ | 618'085 $ [ ivz'eis $ | 296'505 $ | LEO'VEY s | szv'zsy s | vve'LLy 3| ais'top $ | osv'esy $ | 00s'82€ $ | Leg'zel $ $ LSOO TV.ANIWINONI TvL0L] 22
£L501°0 § | yzE0l0 $ | 620010 $ | or860°0 $ | 809800 s [ 28£60°0 ¢ [ 291800 $ | 96800 $ | 028200 $ | 669800 $ | 625800 $ 034 /$ 1800 LINN TVANZW33ON L2
- s| - s - s| - s - s| - $] - s - s - $] - s| - $ U /8 SIOUVHO sam| 0z
122000 $ | 512000 $ | 042000 § | 502000 $ | 00z00°0 s | 961000 $ | 1610070 $ | 181000 3 [ vaLo00 $ | 1810070 $ | 621000 S Ut /$ Nnav [ el
- $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ U /$ wseo |8l
£5€01°0 $ | 8010L'0 $ | 69860°0 $ | 559600 $ | 80v60°0 ¢ [ 81600 $ [ 9.680°0 $ | 88/80°0 $ | 9c980°0 $ | 815800 $ | oor80'0 $ U /S LSOO LINN TH4aNY1 ¥3H10] /1
9l
Sl
ypL'9 [22x) vri'e vrl'e vrl'9 y71'9 [Za%) 1’9 vyL'9 €15’y €ve'L FRED] vioL |l
el
£00°L £00'L £00'4 £00'} £00'L £00'L £00'} €00} £00'L 9€L L0g . D 034 INZON! HOIN 3 %vadNO |21
ZrL's 'S Zhl's ZrL's (225 ZYL'S Tyl's [22%] TYL's 911'S €95l EREN] NOILV¥aNaD 35vE | L}
SL1aa40 AD¥3NT F18YMENIY| 01
6
059'0 059'0 0590 059°0 059'0 059°0 059°0 059'0 0590 059'0 059'0 . M ALIQVAVO| 8
2rL's LS 'S TYL's (225 TrL's Zrl's ZrL's 'S 9lL't B e HMN NOILYYaNZOL3N| /2
9
g
£702 7207 1207 0202 6L0Z 8107 1102 9102 5107 v102 £107 ¥
€
S3LIS TV ~ TUHANY1 ¥3HLO z
| ALID ISYIAVIL|

S ] 0 d 0 N W 1 N r ] o) a | v

D-ALIOL-dIUVTIVNIS €L02VAHD 3SI9ARI1N90-EL0Z-SduvIN

31



Til47 43HLO Z 9bey

50'.2) $ | 16521 s o0zl X §]eesit RIEED $ HMIN / § 1S00 TV.LOL THHANYT ¥3HLO[ 28
5%
552659 $ | 9zv'Le9 $ | 091'229 $ | 588109 ¢ | 600'c65 $ | 820'6L5 $ $ 1S00 TV.LOL TIIHGNYT ¥3H10| 0
- HEE S| - $| - $| - S| - $ $ LSOO NNOOYILNI TIIHANY ¥3HLO| 62
$52'€59 9ZY'LE9 091'229 §8¢'L09 600'€65 8206, $ 1800 ADY3INE TU4ANY1 ¥3HLO| 82
Jx4
- s - s| - s| - s| - s| - $ v’} $ LlidHLMm |92
- $| - I s| - $| - $] - $ - $ S1S00 NOILOANNOONIINI| 62
¥z
§52T'£59 s [ 9zv'Le9 $ | 091229 $ | 58€'209 $ [ 600665 $ | 820'6.5 $ y0'L B LTid HLm | €2
0g1'829 $ | 606'ZL9 $ | 152’285 $ | ¥20'P8S $ | 10z'0Ls $ | 852'955 $ s 1500 TY.ANININONI VLOL| 2T
912210 s | 0z6LL'0 $ | se9l10 ¢ [ eseLio $ | 6801170 $ | 828010 $ FEN] LS00 LINN VLNaWaxoNI| LT
| - | - s - BRE s - $| - $ U /$ $39uvHO sam| 0z
S5200°0 $ | 62000 $ | ev2000 $ | L£200'0 $ [ 1ez00°0 $ | 9zz00'0 $ Ut 15 nwav |61
- | - s - $| - s[ - s| - $ U /5 w20 {8l
196110 $ 19110 $ | 268110 $11z110 S | 858010 $ | zogoL0 $ Ut /3 1509 LINN TUH4ANY1 ¥3HL0| 2}
9l
Gl
vrl'9 vhL'9 [x) vl'9 yr1'9 1’9 FREN wioL |l
£l
¥5Z00L | S00'L €00} €00} £00'L €00'L, €00} o EREN] S03d LNJONI HOIW 9 3vad-No [Z1
TYL'S 'S ZrL'S TYL'S ZYL's ZrL'S EREN NOILVYINZO 35vE | LL
SLIQTHD ADH3NI IT8YMINIY| 0L
6
059°0 0590 0590 059°0 0590 059'0 [~ M ALIDYdVO| 8
'S ZrL's LS LS ZrL's LS ™ HMI NOILVH3NIOLaN| £
) 9
G
6202 8207 1202 9202 S207 ¥202 2
€
S3LIS TV - TH4ANYT ¥3HLO 4
ALID 3SAUIAVAL| L

Z A X M A n L o] d \4

O-ALIDL-dTAU VNI 102D 3SIaneI1\90-€10Z-SduvIN

32



$034

} oBeg
[
- - - - " - M _ - - - - - 3 HOVLLY HLIM YO3HD SSO¥D] 69
18
WG =0 Waor =0 it &= %eor Weor = e %ot £ HEGL =D =L = %S B GG DAY SAEPNG U % SNAREO0 | 95
et Cery weET = i AGEL e Rt WEEL wawr £S5 it WaTE waE WoEr RET = % TOFUMON S5
v9
S 221 WL L e o w2 2 veg w 5 ot T [} [ S Varse soau FoNVIVE SALVINWAS 5038 | 69
P OFEE SITE BT 8T oIFEE P 9w Te P 51878 D295 BUETE BT oETe BT 0L i So38 3N STd SNaSvE) 5038 dauinoss_| 29
]
SR YOI vEsee Sote Tt 2 TS RLTE ot Goee = TEGEE T Z5Eve R ZZ70F I STOUNCS 5038 9101 |09
R Too3 21 (ga) oL () To03H (G a3 h Tooa L) Teo51) () GOz} oS ety (] oo o] [ G505 EEET] S30UN0S BINLO V0N [531vS) / S35vHONNd 9598 | 85
9LL L vl 9L L 2 [ nLL 8L AL oL R 8L oL 922 9L L S3Y TANV 4l TWILNSH5431G Sr7d 3NN3Sval GINVIE0 5034 [ 95
890°hY 606y 608YY 608 b 6007y ees'v 650 PY 696'FY a%0'ry sy o 600FY i o8ty Shi'cy ¥800r 008'ZE. ST (M3NI GINIVIBO §O3 |16
& WL L g o 59 4 =) 8 B Bl =1 1667 [ B oLy A s34 UI/0 TIHHY0 6938} 95
SONVIANOD LaaHo A SaVMINTE 548) 55
¥S
NOLLYWSOANI 9 INIWHIYLLY) €S
S
_ 15|
w80 "L WL 1 g 8 o 50 () o9 C) 2 0T [Eo Trs I varer FONVIVE SMIVINWAG 5038 [ 05
987 B LG 328 DITE BLIL AUHTE B8 <E BLEZE 84670 BLFLE 08 5IBTE 58K 62078 poTEL BT 3N $N1d INM3SYE) GIHINOSY 5034
SIS @ [ €9 o T TSIEC 23 [ seiee G wove et 5 A oy 65 S30UNOS 5338 IOL
- - - - e - =
[Goszl  fiocae (] Toooen___[ioacy] () 6092w B Toa'zi] [EZER [ ooz [loescr) () (S TR0 530UN0S HINIO WO 53 1Sl /SISVHOHNE 038
N ) 7 w2 g7 ) N (7 L N WL 7 i N WL "L ) TR 1 VIIN332310 5d SNOS5vE) QINVIS0 S
645" BEDYY 609 8007y a%g'vr 600 7Y 688" BOOTY i 690'rt 688 60G'vY Ed 860y 2 P60y 0082 (V3N O3NIY.LE0 So3Y
) () F) i) [ B = = 00 o8 20 = [ owE Ee vorer WEIL HEAO GEIEAYD SoaY
HONVI14NOD 11380 ADHANT I 1aVASNaH Sab|
sasnjor
[ [r s 63vy Y [T (2 T (s sy, G [ITX23 Gy 5937 STy e YIS0Y 2T
i 87 G Eakid [ 5 Ty [0 w0 [ E FoaYY 0T ki E7ig ARG BOOZE =] FBVAGNEY MEN TVIOL | vE
So3u ¢
B %
S53H
Soau
GozT s W 0L ST L 00T WO 0L SHIE WOZE 00T s O WO WO W Soan TGN SHENE0D ASNOLS
wio WS e wie e %) [2X] s e g wio ) [ Ve [ sy s =) Tv3d HONONHL THAGNYT 83HIC
VST v WSIE =0 = i GEI =1 =D = vt e Vst Y 050L PR oS SoE VadW HONGHHL ¥30NVAD |7
30N TavRaENaYd RN | B2
- - - - - - - , - - - - - - . - = ERE) DNIUSIXE V101 [tc |
- - - = = T B - - = = = = g - - - Soau
- 3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - soA INTI5VE WU TLNGEET
SROUTOS ITBYAINIY DRILSIXS
$324N0S)
STt (R OITE SI8TC [ ST SIEE BT BI9TT e 9T i 99 It W vaTeL T TWaN S7d ANFTIEval 5038 VioL |50 ]
50T ®6ITT GBaTe S60C 90T 0T RS W g @0Te sa0cs veaTe [EE 58020 FaOTC XY G waks 5038 da8N0aN AN
ks O5E 05 F0TE 60%E w80 980T [ B0 SE0TE SAOTE FOTE S0z 500ZE w0 eI E AUINOITH MR 505
T 0T T [ T w7 W ) %L D 55T WL E w0t X 050 WO Tolova
O $90TE e GROZE AT FE0TE §90°CC HO0TE 0807C S60TE ROGTC 880TE 9E0TE (X FO0TE TiLHE YOELE ‘TONGHH1d VINGVGHON - SO3H
73 B BLL 8L (73 LI BLL L [73 En RLL BLL [ 8LL 8L 8LL 8L - GNM35vEl SO3H d3Y-34d - S038
2T BT ST BT IHT ST ey I ST omTT BIET 8% ST S8 ST [ i SAGE GaHIoaY - 5038
[ 5] [ ¥olovd
WL T35 DL FOVAZAY BVAAC-QVOT
Ssteee SO S EELNER]
$03y QaNINOIY] €
szor =3 == B23 B =3 Cx3 220z V2w ozaz = 16E =3 3 sr0e vioE BX3 TeioL _ z
| | ALID ASUIAVHL |
A X M A n 1 S o o | 4 o | N 1 £l T I o 2] v EI

D-ALIDL-dIHTYNIS CLODAND 0BI0ATIN90-CLOT-SL VN

33



8034

2 oBug
TILeS s [Grivs) Wiy 3 [worcs) s [Ueeos s (Ues B N I (k) R R L 3 R L Y A I e I B TannaAaw 11500 |78
I (o R T B L ) 00w Tooazy ™ Jeoct) 000 i) Tosaey_— Jlewzy __ [loosel] _ [feoer) |00 [Goaos) oaaosl | SweisTovround N | €6
T g T B T - < B T T = = B - T B o S35VHOBNd §3HI0 |28
. - - - - - - - . - B - B - - - - oI S35vHONNd WIOL | 19
tooo'zw) o9 ope'zy {aoozh) fooo'en) fooaTL) (005 it {ooazy) faop'zn 2 (oos'zs) (oog'el) {oan'a) {oo0'0c) {000°03) {oo0'as) 593y $3WS WioL |08
=or B2y X T = o = E4 T S0t = "ot E2T ) Ey =1 ot YOLVIvo8a - 350 038
SV 3]y 2 Thv B 3| veE [ TSt HED Tic € |me  §lece s |wt  s[ee  sjsie  s|wee 3|0t 3 HANTS NVGIHOIN - 3010 938
SIIVS 1 SISYHIUN
ALID FSHAAVHL| 22
L.
=3 w0z e 920z E23 [r0z B3 =3 [1232 3 G0z si0e 20z sy [soz [prce EE3 w101 F
| ALID ASHINVHLY 1
A X M|~ n L s ¥ | © d o N_ | W | 1 B T 1 | ) a v
D-ALIOL-dUIYNIS £L0DAID 9610481 190-EL0T-SAUVIN

34



FOMel1-0 HOVLLY

| afeg
- s - ] - ] - I $] - 5] - ] - ] - 3] - s] - ] - ] - ] - 5] - B ™oL S |
- s - s~ - - s - - s - s - N s - S| - - s - N s s posojowin_| 4
- i - 5| _- - - s - - | - s - - ] - s - - s - - s $ SuBIpoons
- s - s - - - s - - s| - s - - s - s - - s - - s s JoMiEnpUl
- s| - s - - s - - s - s - - s - |- - s] - - s S Isplowion
- s - sl - - - s - - s - s - - s - s - - s - - $ 3 USRIy
- sBrulpoing pauund]
6S0PEC’L | epCLE0’) VEr'8T0L 8| be9sc0l  § | cvseo’t  $ | 650°020°F [T BISPLO’L 61101 600600t _$ | 792'900'% £25°€00) 80800077 _$ | 060'866 196566 § 0L
[ s osce 08" $ o6zt $ ] 062¢ (R QBZC 06CC 06T 08T ¢ loece 06T T 06TT §|o6ee 662 B (]
- - - s| - s - - - - - N s{ - - - s - - s =WBRooHS
06008 Q00'08 00006 $ 00008 $ | 00006 00006 000°06 000'06 00006 00006 § | 00006 000°06 00006 § 00006 00006 § TotanpuUL
voL'vs §99°218 20119 §|S0z609 | cee00 995'609 $S2'€09 676'105_ 2v1°009 SSE'B8S 8 | £95°985 ] G00'E6S  § | 9T 165 asveEs  § L)
sg0'z2e 980°'92¢ Tiisee S|owvee | arvece vozzze orTize § | 6102 lzesle s9ERlE  § | viviie S9v'SiE BISSIE & | viSTIE €EOElE ¢ IoiuopIsoy
T35 j0 89980 3781 o) ORIV WNLXER|
£ESTL Ser'Tt 09v°zL yTrT) seezk TSEEL FIEY 08T L PETL 60ZZL CLVEL GElT) £01°Z) 830k €e0cL “oN W10l
21¢ [ BLE [ EI 8ic 3 [ 8IE qle QI 3 sl 8¢ SIE ‘oN polgiouun
- - - - - - - < - - - B - - - “oN myPmoohs
2 or o oF oF o oy 2 [12 oy [ oF oF (13 or ‘oN isinsnpul
050°C 080°€ 10 290°C €50 [ SEOE Sz0e 910€ io0'e 986 6867 086 TI6T £96'C “oN [Caae]
$80°6 8506 1606 vou's 166 056'8 £268 2687 0/8'8 vye'e 4088 1628 vsr'e 8EL'9 TS “oN IeRuopisey
(39qUNY) 15T39104 (10W0HND 10) 19}
. Siityzing IRUINIOA-UON
| LS |
5 TSWRINDoL S6Z Vd SAOGT JUIWITIN] [FUSIPPY] G
- s - s| - sl - $] - s - s - s - s - $| - s - s - s - s - s| - H 5 (@38 £SO MONI 958) 0uandwod 40 183 pHusuISIU]
B B < = B T B - 5 g B B B - B 5 19949 LS00 ONI 95%) AB19U3 jd WN|oA X 9o(id 13jsuei]]
Y0Sd YBholy} passncaal junowy|
- s| - s - sl - s - $] - s] - s - §] - s| - ] - s| - ] - §] - ] - s HMA/S MW 15d 99119 Jajsumil payseasiod| o
690'E 89028 89028 690°TE 690 650°Z¢ 890°ze §90°2C 890'2¢ 690°ze 69LLE 89957 SvZEY @11'a) [k 503y teior|"}
£48°C £86°C €8T €98 £a8C €5 €89 €89 €89 €88 €85C €89C 253 S9TT [0 034 ({2) 6€ 998 €T AS) oApUooU|
[CLER (gog'es) 009°Z1) (009'T4) (©og'zh 009'TH 008'zk) oog'zh} ©og'Th) taos'zh) (00g'¢) (000°93) (coo'oe) (00a'as) (000'08) 5038 | SO MON Woid (P|0S) 0s8yaInd
98Iy $8L1Y SeLLY 98y 9811y 981y 8L o8Iy 8Ly s8Iy 881y seL1b Si0°iy 619'5€ 1ziee HAW 1mans
98I LY 98LLE 8L 1Y 8L LY 991y 8Ly SBLIY 982LY SBLIY 9821 98Iy 98L 1Y £IolY 619'8e 1TV MW vdd
= - T - B 5 - B T - 5 B < < - HAW UORRWIH] 10} ToOYS 9[0ad 69E) PING
- - potog Uopeiouos
#UNG0 593
9L I6LL €895 L eI 060019} VSH6IoL  §|6co06Gt S| ZTiTgsl S| Svavicl SEL'sly't OpS'TeyL § | 9800V L YR 08E ¢ TR $ | sioe6s [
[ @01'zs) Ueg'os) Qg ar) (zac'apy) ) Bsaor) % |(e6ry) oeg’ey) Gorzy) s [Bolyy) l69'is) 955V} [CEY $ |lac'ost. (sojeg) sosoyoing 93y
925°058'} V64°508'% $8LTGLL 89'61LY \rz'ese'h PLLET) €8L'865'L ¢ | 84S'6SS} 146'128°L L0E'sey'L € | 068kl SL8IEY'L OLE°TTE'} £86'920°} $ | sig'ers vad
- - B - - T - s - 5 A S| - - - - s - 10} sjooy oojoid wo5) pfing
T S31qumaliay] maN 16] SHUouINbaY NUANaY
%201 %Z01 %201 %E01 HagaL %EOL %E0L %e0L FE0L %col %0l %80} oLl HEYT %BES % SIUTER 534 OARGININD Ui %, 9oUsliduI0D
[6e1 %GE} HaBEL %6EL %GEL "BEL %sEL %6E L %sEL %o6EL %BEL %6eL %gEl %lSZ %89 % £533 MaN Qi ssurjduiad (eriswasu o
b2
[ pIE] 9v8 sig 506 vEe €98 €66 TZL 1500 1868 oIr's £9L°ET yorsy ERET] SONVIVE SALLVINAND SO38 [ €7
8I8°TC 918T€ 8I8°TE S.62E 9I8'TE 9/8TC 91828 9/9'TC 98TE 9I8TE 2I8°TE 9I87TE ¥99'9t SELTL SO3% (M3N SN1d 3N13SvE) S03H G3MIND3Y
PES'EE £99°6€ T69°€E TTLEE 1SICE 0BLEE [ [ 898EE 968°EE 1266 ISTVE 982'8€ 1T7°0Y T06'65 S30UNOS §038 VIOL | g
00971 0034} (©0g'zH t009°zH {0gg'z) (009TL) ooz} foosTL} 009°TY, [CEE) (00sEL) ©oa'aL) (000'0€) 0o0'0s) 000'08) SO | STOUNOS YIHLO WONH (§3T¥S) / S3ISYHONNA 93Y | 6 |
84l 8L 81l 8L 8Ll 8L 8LL [ 7 [ 8LL 812 8LL N 8Lz 5034 ANV 1 “WiLN3¥343Id SN1d INN3SVE) JINYLIE0 $93M
695'pY 695 @99’k &95°7y 889y 899k 6397 699'kt 639'vY 639'yY 6957k 659y Svi'ey bagor S06'2€ s034 (3N gaNIvigo soay |/t |
82 18 ov8 si9 506 3 £96 €66 220') 150°) 1861 or's €262 voLsy ETEAY $034 UIA0 QIO $O3Y
FONVIdWOD L9350 AOHINE 318YMINTH SdY]
SB0'CE 960'CE 860°C: $60'ZE 960°CE q60ZE B607E 860°T 860°TE 860°TE 860TE 860TE 860°CE 988'S) 05E01, EeE SO3M MIN PaInbaY|
00k 0oL 0L [ o0k [T [ [ [ [ (5 o0k o0t 050 €ca HOLOV|
86028 860°2€ 860°ZE [k 860°2E 8602E 860°CE 860E 850°2¢ 86072 8607¢ §80'Z8 86028 TLLE YEE1E 503y SousIeyId ouewaiN - 5oad| (| |
8Ll 827 [ 8L N 81L (7 §iL 27 SLL 8L 827 o 821 8iL [SeET] (aNM3sval d33-3ud - $03Y
98T 918TE Si8'zE 9I8'Te 9l8Te 916°C SI9E 518°CE 528 5i8°T8 826 9i8'ze 918TE ass'ze ziiTe s03d poinboy Sd - 503
»
9I8°TE SI8°CE 918TE 919°CE 946TE 945°TE 92878 982 9/87C 918°CE 948TE 9L8TE 9I8TE 0SSTE Tz HAW UoWornboy S| g |
[ oo [T o183 ealiedued %0L| G|
952°92¢ £05'52E L2178 Han aBiesant Bupiun 1A ¢ « 13039404 230G
10 ST0E S50 {2424 TTot Wmﬂ %0t TE0T (54 fIxs pi5 310 ¥ ¥iog Troe WEL
_ , A, | _ _ z
SALNILLN 1VdIDINAN 304 AMVYIWINS SOAVHIRANS NV Id ADUINT I19YMININ - 3 INTJWHOVLLY ALID ASUIAVHL] |
M A n L S | ] | [) | ] | o [ N | W Rl | ] | r 1 ] v

O-ALIDL-dIUVIVNIL £102AID 3S19ARI1NGD-€ 10Z-SdUVIN



36

FORIALD HOVLLY Z abey
- ] - s L[S
- $ - $ paigtowun
- - $| - s cuBinoong
- | - B [T
B s - § [TRIeLWOD)
- ] - s 19QUOPIEoY
abivyang patunid)
616801 SE9'SE0 L $ (w0
[ 06¢¢C [ pajojowiin
- - SiyBipoons
00008 00006 [EIEE]
96E8L9 [ TepToURog
[ woee Tojuopisey
(365 ye sowseo 9yes ) 9BieYPINS WHLRER] |9
909'T 895'Z} “of 0L
8ie s1€ K polviowr
- - Ra sydipoons
or or fopiEnpul
860 660°C foiziommon
ori'e THS 1ouopIooY
TioGunN] 15093103 {1oWosN 19} z:_aﬁwml
2BIBDING 2[1}OWN|OA-UON
1S |
< BUAUUNDIL 6T Yd IA0QET JUIUIEIAU| JeUOIPPY| IﬂMI
- st - s § 139343 1S69 HONI 993} 99uDIdUIog 0 3863 [muswadyf
- - B 331 1500 UONI 995) ABiaus jo auimjon X 9opd FouTIL |
oSd UBHGif pasencael unowv| G
p
- s - ¥ HAINS HAW 350 3011d J9jsuviL paIseamIod| o
p
69028 6807E o3 wolf |
€88°% €88'T $93Y {(z) 6€ 995 €12 4S) onguou|
@09z {008°TH) =034 SO MON WOl (PIOST 0480ind
98LlY 98Iy HMI (ions
8L 9841V M ¥dd
- - HAAN (UonGLIIo;ul 7] To0Ys 0[6id 005) png
7 posvd opaiouog | ce
PONTI0 953N,
i} S6g'/88'L _ $|9sLLvEl S s [
KT [Ger sy B § {so1g) Sasuyaing O3
608°Er6'L Z05968 L % s Ved
- - B 5 Uonaeyuy 10 61004 yaoord 055 pyng
SajqEMBLiBE Mo 10} SitiswaNNboY anusAoY
|4
%zol %T0t % 09uDiEg DY OARBINAIO Wk %
F6EL [ % T334 MaN Wi 3auTdwiod [mGswaso [ oz
Ezdl
669 621 $034 3ONVIVE INLVINRNS §03d | £7 |
98¢ 98T EEEL (3N SN1d ANTNFSYE) SOTY JIHINOIY
Sl YOT'EE $308N0S $934 V1oL | 0g |
00g'z1) [GRERDY) [=ET] $308NOS ¥IHLO WOYd (S31vS) / SISvHOUNd 03
8L 8Ll $034 (ANY 4t “TYILNIN3441d S07d 3NT13SVE) OINIVLEO SO3Y
6997y &85y o3 (V3N) GINIVLEO 5038
62 5L ERED] YIAC QI(HUYD SOTY
SONVIdWOO 110340 AOUSNT S18YMINTH S
|
960Z¢ 860°TE so3u §03M maN poinbay
[ 0% HOLOV|
760'TE 860 5034 S3umepIQ Imuswarl - 5034 0 |
[ 822 5034 (aNM35vE) d38-38d - §934| §
9l8TE 91828 03¢ pelnboy Sd¥ - 5034
9I8TE 9292 HM LGB S|
i JopoR] 0oUB|INOD %01
HAA aBuisns Buluuns 1A £ < jeusaiog sapes|
(244 B4 En|
Z
i ALID ISUIAVAL]
wY Z A X o[ 8 v |

O-ALIDL-dIUVIYNIS £102\1D 3519AB11NG0-E10Z-SdUVIN



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

100 YEARS

To: TCL&P Board of Directors \D
From: Jessica Wheaton, Marketing & Community Relations Coordinator Q\
Date: August 6, 2013

Subject: Low Income Energy Efficiency Pilot Program Results

At the January 22" TCL&P board meeting, Mayor Michael Estes recommended that
TCL&P focus additional efforts to increase energy efficiency in low income housing in
hopes that it will decrease customer utility bills and result in reduced “red tags” and utility
shut-offs due to non-payment. From Mayor Estes’ recommendation, the TCL&P Board
formed an ad hoc committee to consider alternatives to donating the red tag revenues to
charities that would achieve low income housing energy efficiencies.

On February 21% the ad hoc committee, consisting of Chairman McGuire, Vice-Chairman
Taylor and Commissioner Budros, City Manager Bifoss and TCL&P staff met to discuss the
pr%posed pilot program concept, which was then presented to the full Board on February
26"

The Low Income Energy Efficiency Pilot Program followed an outline similar to the TC
Saves model, but was only available to customers who met the income qualification
guideline (200% of the Federal Poverty Level and below). In addition, TCL&P covered the
$100 sign-up fee and provided up to a $1,000 allowance to homeowners to assist in
implementing the energy efficiency improvement recommendations made by the contractor
(up to a $500 allowance was offered to renters if the landlord matched 50% of the energy
efficiency improvement cost).

TCL&P worked with Michigan Energy Options (MEO) to assist in implementing the pilot
program, including identifying and income qualifying customers, performing the energy
assessments, developing energy saving recommendations, and implementing the energy
saving upgrades.

TCL&P and MEO worked with sixteen local service agencies to identify income qualified
customers to participate in the pilot, including the Salvation Army, Department of Human
Services, and Grand Traverse County. The Father Fred Foundation also sent out a direct
mailing to TCL&P customers who had received services from the Foundation over the last
year.

Although over thirty customers were identified through the outreach efforts, only twenty
were recruited, income qualified and placed on the TC Saves schedule prior to the April he
scheduling deadline. Of the twenty customers, sixteen site visits were completed. Four

37



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013

customers didn’t receive service due to insufficient documentation, living outside of the TC
Saves program boundary, landlord issue, and unable to meet the scheduling deadline.

All of the energy assessments were completed before June 1% A total of twelve Energy
Star qualified refrigerators were installed, which included removal and recycling of the old
unit, and one Energy Star dehumidifier. The program also included direct installation of
eighty-two CFLs, sixteen LED night lights, five thermostats, five pipe wraps, three shower
heads, and ten aerators.

The pilot program is estimated to have achieved an annual energy savings of 23,663.1
kilowatt hours (kWh); 16,284.1 kWh for refrigerator replacement and recycling and 7,379
kWh for direct installations.

The assessment included gas leak detection, combustion analysis, blower door diagnostics
and submission to the BEACON home assessment software program. Educational material
was also presented and reviewed during the assessment.

A follow up phone survey was conducted to ensure appliance replacements and the
TCL&P pilot program service was well accepted. 100% of the customers interviewed
responded the assessment was useful, the delivery process was satisfactory, and
participants would recommend this program to their network. 80% of the customers also
responded that they do expect to see an energy reduction as a result of the direct
installations, appliance replacements and what they learned from the assessment.

Only $12,400, of a $30,000 budget, was spent on implementing the pilot program. Because
of the pilot program’s success, TCL&P staff plan to incorporate a similar program model
into the Low Income Energy Efficiency program, required by PA295, in the future.

TJ Brown with MEO will be in attendance at the Board meeting to discuss the pilot program
implementation and answer any further questions.

38



FOR THE LIGHT & POWER BOARD MEETING OF AUGUST 13, 2013

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

To: Light & Power Board
From: Tim Arends, Executive Director il
Date: August 2, 2013

Subject: TCL&P Comparative Report on Financial & Operating Rations

Attached is a comparative summary report that provides ratios (often called performance
indicators or performance metrics) of TCL&P’s business model. The report also includes
median values for each ratio using the APPA — North Central averages. This report is completed
by municipal utilities periodically for APPA who compiles the responses and publishes a report
that is useful to utilities in setting specific goals or to gauge the utility’s effectiveness in certain
areas. The latest APPA report (2012) is attached for your information.

This spreadsheet was prepared last fall ahead of the joint TCL&P/Cherryland Electric Board of
Directors meeting. The information was not distributed or presented at that meeting for reasons
unknown to me, but I believe it is useful in assisting the board in providing staff direction with
goal setting for the organization as it embarks on strategic planning.

While the latest information is somewhat dated for TCL&P — through 6-30-2011, it still provides
useful trends. Rates have not been adjusted since 2006 and the utility continues to have no debt
or significant increases/decreases in.customers. Also, many staffing changes have occurred in
the past 10 months that does affect certain ratios. Staff plans to provide updated information to
the board as the information is updated, and can also add any addition metrics as requested.

39




%9L'€ %L0'S %0S°S %S0'Y %0L '€ a8ejuadiad ssoj ABiau3
971 S 66 $|¢6 M WA74 S| vit S J3W03sn3 j1e3aJ Jad asuadxa
[eJ2Ua3 pue dANRIISILIWPY
St S 18 S|49 S| ss s|es S J3W031sn) j1e3a4 Jad asuadxa sojes
pue 3921AJS ‘BulzUNOIIE JIBWOISND
LTE'S $ 86611 S| 198LT $ | 799’8t $ | 665°1C S ajIW 3N
Jad asuadxa uonnqlsiq
SET S €T¢ S|t S|eve S| 8¢ S Jawo3sno f1eyad
Jad asuadxa N O uonnguasid
96€'S 6S€'S 009°'S TL9'Y 168°¢ Japeal 121w Jad S1aWo3sNnd |1el1ay
1900 S 0500 S| 1200 S| 2800 S 18500 S HAW J2d 1500 samod paseydind
0500 $ 7S0°0 $|£500 $|SS00 $ | 0900 S PIos HAN Jad asuadxa Ajddns samod je3oL
IS¢ $ 76¢ $ | vov $ | 855 $1ss9 $ JaWwolsnd |1e1aJ Jad asuadxa INO |Be10L
¥90°0 $ S90°0 S| TL00 $ 15400 $ 11600 S PIoS HMM 42d asuadxa NO |e10L
Sy§ 99y 0S€ 0z§ 69¢C saAojdwa Jad s1awWwolsnNd |ielay
91000 S ¥000°0 $ | z100°0 $ | 81000 $ | 20000 $ Jej|op anusAaJ Jad sJunodoe 3|qi1da||0duN
9900 S 8500 $ | 8900 $| 6210 $ 10500 $ lejjop anusAal Jad awodul 319N
SS'¢C 6L 008 ¥9'6 LEYT o11eY JUBLIND
1980 7760 6160 €680 7860 oney sunesado
€0£°0 8v0°0 900 v/N v/N S}assy |e10] 011g3d
¥90°0 S 9500 S 127900 $ | 9900 $10L00 S SI3W0ISND |BLISNPU] 4
6L0°0 S ¥80°0 S| 8800 S| 7600 S| 600 S SI2WO1SND [BIDISWWO] 4
7800 S 6,00 $ 19800 S| ¥60°0 S 14600 S SISWO0ISND |BIIUBPIS3Y
.00 S .00 S| 4400 S| €800 $ 19800 S SI3W0IsND |1e1dY IV «
«HM)I 12d anuanay
. senep S00Z ~ 900Z 800z 1107 uondiusag oney
_uelpaN 800T o . o -

sute|d/[eiua)

ULON - VddV

(TT0Z-5002) soney SuneiadQ pue |eppueuly uo odoy

lamod 73 1ysn A1) asianed |

40



\

READING

2012 Annual Summary for the Energy
Optimization and Renewable Energy Plan

In 2008 a state law was passed directing all Michigan utilities to help its customers reduce their
energy usage. Public Act 295, also known as the Clean, Renewable and Efficient Energy Act
requires Traverse City Light & Power (TCL&P) to assist customers in improving their electric energy
efficiency through Energy Optimization programs and increase the amount of renewable energy in
the utility’s generation portfolio.

In 2012 TCL&P saved over 4.1 million kilowatt hours through the TC Light & Power Energy Smart
Program, exceeding the state-mandated goal by 62% and saving enough energy to power
approximately 628 Traverse City area homes for an entire year.

The program offered many opportunities for Additionally, TCL&P offered energy efficiency
customers to save energy and money. Those assistance to other customers:

opportunities included:
e TCL&P provided CFLs and refrigerators to low-

° Free compact fluorescent light (CFL) bulbs income homeowners. TCL&P also distributed
energy saving kits, which included CFLs, an
LED nightlight and educational material on
saving energy, through the Department of
Human Services. The program was available
to customers whose household income was
at or below 200% of the federal poverty level

e Coupons for discounted LED holiday light sets

* A $60 incentive for recycling an older,
inefficient refrigerator or freezer, which
included free pickup of the unit e

* A $25 incentive for customers who purchased guidelines
a new electric clothes dryer with moisture
sensor, an electric hot water heater with an
energy factor greater than or equal to 93%,
or an ENERGY STAR® refrigerator

° Business customers were offered incentives
for upgrading to equipment with greater
energy efficiency, including lighting, motors, air
systems, refrigeration, HVAC units and building
» A $150 incentive for customers upgrading their ~management systems
furnace or central air conditioner

New in 2013

TCL&P is offering a $75 rebate when customers participate in the SUN Alliance’s

community solar project!

SOLARUPNORTH For more information on the TC Light & Power Energy Smart Program, visit the website,

ALLIANCE

tclp.org, and click on the ‘Energy Smart’ button at the bottom of the homepage.




} | -
A = ¥ ) VVA-1 . o = PANT
renewanie energy

In addition to helping Michigan residents become more energy efficient, Public Act 295 also requires
Michigan utilities to acquire more renewable energy. TCL&P’s successes to date in meeting the state-

mandated renewable energy goal include:

» A long-term agreement to buy electricity that
is generated from the Heritage Stoney Corners
wind farm. Beginning in August 2010, the energy

produced from this agreement was equivalent
to powering approximately 4,171 Traverse City
area homes

» A long-term agreement to buy electricity that is
generated from the Granger landfill gas facility.
In 2012, the energy produced from this
agreement was equivalent to powering
approximately 497 Traverse City area homes

» Owning and operating the country’s largest
utility grade wind turbine when it was installed
in 1996 (pictured). At 600 kilowatts, it is small in
comparison to today’s larger units. Even though
the unit was down 5 months in 2012 for repairs,
it still produced enough energy to power 52
Traverse City area homes

For the 2012 reporting period, TCL&P generated or acquired
31,119,324 kilowatt hours of renewable energy. During this time
frame, TCL&P’s renewable energy was 8.54% of its total retail
electric sales. State law requires utilities to have 10% renewable
energy by 2015 and TCL&P exceeded this mandate in 2012 with
a peak month of 12% for the year. TCL&P anticipates that it will achieve
as much as 16% by 2015 with the increase in landfill gas energy production.

TCL&P currently does not charge its customers for either the Energy Optimization or Renewable

Energy Plan expenses as allowed by Public Act 295.

» The 2012 itemized cost to a residential customer
for implementing the Energy Optimization
program requirements was $1.13 per month

» The 2012 itemized monthly surcharge for a
TCL&P residential customer for the Renewable
Energy Plan requirements under Public Act 295
was $0.00

Copies of the complete 2012 annual report for both the Energy Optimization program and the :‘
Renewable Energy Plan are available at the Customer Service Desk in the Governmental Center ,
(400 Boardman Ave.) and on TCL&P’s website, tclp.org.

» The average electric residential customer is
expected to save $3.55 each month of the
Energy Optimization program’s life

» For the average Michigan residential customer,
renewable energy is estimated to avoid $3.90
per month of new coal-fired generation costs

» The Michigan Public Service Commission’s annual
report on renewable energy can be viewed at the
following website: www.michigan.gov/mpsc

49



|
|

The City Commission approved a local law that states the police can
issue a civil infraction (ticket) to drivers that do not stop and yield the
right of way for a pedestrian within a marked crosswalk that has a “Stop
for Pedestrian” sign erected. Drivers include anybody operating a motor
or non-motorized vehicle, including bicyclists.

Later this summer, the City of Traverse City will kick off an education and
information campaign for pedestrians and drivers, to help them understand
their rights and responsibilities as well as to inform them of the recently
adopted law. Following the educational/informational period, enforcement
of the law with possible fines will follow for those that violate the local
crosswalk law.

é Free CFLs

Use the coupon below to pick up three FREE compact

fluorescent light (CFL) bulbs! Lighting accounts for close

to 20% of the average home’s electric bill. ENERGY STAR®

qualified CFLs use up to 75% less electricity than incandescent

light bulbs, last up to 10 times longer, cost little up front, and
provide a quick return on investment.

Coupon Redeemable only at: TCL&P Service Desk at the Governmental Center - 400 Boardman Ave.
Name Email
Address Account #
Phone #

TRAVERSE CITY

LIGHT & POWER

2 Investing Our Energy In You

Coupon expires September 13, 2013.
Limit one coupon per ratepayer household or business. No cash value




Did You Know...

Did you know that ceiling fans don’t just provide cooling comfort from summer heat?
They also reduce your energy bills when used instead of other air conditioning methods.
Ceiling fans can save as much as 40% on summer cooling costs by making a room feel up
to.8° cooler, so you can turn up the thermostat. When shopping for a new ceiling fan, be
sure to look for one with the ENERGY STAR® label - it will be approximately 50% more

efficient than basic units and move 20% more air.

Board Member Spotlight

The City Commission appointed Jan Geht to serve on the TCL&P board on June 17,
2013. He is filling the unexpired term of John Snodgrass who recently resigned from
the Board. Jan has an undergraduate degree in accounting from Truman State
University, a masters degree in taxation from University of lllinois, and a law degree
from University of Michigan. He has experience in tax law, employment law, business
organizations, and business transactions. Currently, he practices law with Bowerman,
Bowden, Ford, Clulo & Luyt, P.C. in Traverse City. Jan and his family moved to Traverse
City last year and he looks forward to serving the citizens of Traverse City through his
new role at TCL&P.

TCL&P News

On May 14, 2013 the TCL&P Board promoted Tim Arends to Executive Director, who
had been serving as Interim Executive Director since October 2012. Tim has been with
the City of Traverse City since 1990 and with the TCL&P department since 2008. Stay
tuned for more information and updates from Tim in upcoming bill inserts.

TRAVERSE CITY 1131 Hastings St. | Traverse City, Ml 49686

LIGHT & POWER Main Office and 24-Hour Service: 922-4940

Billing & Account Questions: 922-4431 MNERG)
Investing Our Energy In You Now available: Paperless billing! “'\
&

See the Home Energy Saver and L&P Energy Smart Program at: tclp.org [

Proudly serving our community for 101 years.

jht 2013 Traverse City Light & Power. Printed in the USA

ENERGY STAR
PARTNER




